Public Document Pack
Please Contact

Owen Griffiths.

Extension

43208

Date of Publication

13 October 2021

E Mail

owen.griffiths@ryedale.gov.uk

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Thursday 21 October 2021 at 6.30 pm
Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton

Agenda
1

Emergency Evacuation Procedure
The Chairman to inform Members of the Public of the emergency evacuation
procedure.

2

Apologies for absence

3

Minutes of the meeting held on 30 September 2021

4

Urgent Business

(Pages 3 - 6)

To receive notice of any urgent business which the Chairman considers should be
dealt with at the meeting as a matter of urgency by virtue of Section 100B(4)(b) of
the Local Government Act 1972.

5

Declarations of Interest
Members to indicate whether they will be declaring any interests under the Code of
Conduct.
Members making a declaration of interest at a meeting of a Committee or Council
are required to disclose the existence and nature of that interest. This requirement is
not discharged by merely declaring a personal interest without further explanation.

6

Chair's Announcements

7

First Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Progress Reports 2021/22 (Pages 7 - 22)

8

Treasury Management Mid-Year Review

Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 7HH
Tel: 01653 600666
www.ryedale.gov.uk

(Pages 23 - 34)

9

O & S Forward Plan

10

Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.

(Pages 35 - 38)

Agenda Item 3
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Held at Council Chamber - Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire YO17 7HH
on Thursday 30 September 2021
Present
Councillors Bailey, Garbutt Moore, Middleton (Chair), Oxley, Raine, Raper and Wass
(Vice-Chair)
In Attendance
Alan Bardet, Stacey Burlet, Simon Copley, Emma Garvey, Owen Griffiths, Phillip Spurr
and Margaret Wallace

Minutes
27

Apologies for absence
Apologies were received by Cllrs Cussons, King and Riby.

28

Minutes of the meeting held on 28 July 2021
Decision
That the minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Meeting held on
28 July 2021 be approved and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.
Voting Record
Unanimous

29

Urgent Business
There was no urgent business.

30

Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.

31

Customer Complaints and Compliments Q1 2021/22
Considered- The report of the Project Director, People and Resources.
Decision
That the committee note and endorse the continued good performance of
complaints and
compliments received in the first quarter of 2021/22 of the reporting cycle.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

1

Page 3

Thursday 30 September 2021

Voting Record
Unanimous
32

Risk Management Update
Considered- The report of the Head of Corporate Governance.
Decision
That the Committee notes the contents of this report and comments on the
format and details of the Corporate Risk Register.
Voting Record
Unanimous

33

Revised Equalities Scheme
Considered – The Report of the Head of Communications, Technology and
Business.
Decision
That the action plan be noted as an operational document to assist officers in
the delivery of equality actions
That the Committee agrees that overview of progress against the action plan
will be maintained through a quarterly report to the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.

Voting Record
Unanimous
34

Progress Report on the Implementation of the Climate Change Action
Plan and Associated Projects
Considered – The Report of the Project Director, Places and Resources.
Decision
To note progress on delivery of the Climate Change Action Plan and future
actions to be completed.
Voting Record
Unanimous

35

LGO Annual Review Letter 2020/21

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

2

Page 4

Thursday 30 September 2021

Considered – The Report of the Project Director, People and Resources.
Decision
That the Progress Report on the LGO Annual Review Letter 2020/21 be
received and noted.

Voting Record
Unanimous
36

Review of Workplan
The committee received the Progress Report on the Review of Workplan.

37

Membership of Task Groups
The membership of the scrutiny working groups was amended as follows:
Performance Appraisals – Cllrs Bailey, King, Oxley, Riby, and Raine.
Affordable Housing – Cllrs Middleton and Wass.
Civil Enforcement – Cllrs Garbutt-Moore and Raper
The first meeting of the performance appraisals scrutiny working group is
scheduled to take place on 19 October 2021.

38

Decisions from other Committees
The Committee received the Minutes of the Policy and Resources Committee
held on 29 July and 23 September 2021.

39

Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.
The Chair reiterated the importance of Members attending the Policy and
Resources Committee if they are on the rota to do so.
Members voted on the correct procedure to follow when unable to attend as
Policy and Resources observers.
Decision
Members on the rota to observe the Policy and Resources Committee must do
so in person. If unable to attend, the allocated member should find a
replacement and the Chair and Head of Corporate Governance should be
notified. If no replacement can be found to attend in person, observation by
MS Teams or via the live stream will be allowed, if available.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

3

Page 5

Thursday 30 September 2021

Voting Record
Unanimous

There being no further business, the meeting closed at 20:10.

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

4

Page 6

Thursday 30 September 2021

Agenda Item 7

REPORT TO:

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE:

21 OCTOBER 2021

REPORT OF THE:

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER (s151)
ANTON HODGE

TITLE OF REPORT:

INTERNAL AUDIT AND COUNTER FRAUD PROGRESS
REPORT 2021/22

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

The purpose of this report is to provide Members with an update on audit reports
issued, counter fraud activity and other work completed since the last progress report
to this committee. It also provides an update on ongoing work.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION

2.1

It is recommended the Committee note the work undertaken by internal audit and the
counter fraud team in the year to date.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1

To enable the Committee to fulfil its responsibility for considering the outcome of
internal audit and counter fraud work.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

The Council will fail to comply with proper practice requirements for internal audit and
the Council’s Audit Charter if the results of audit work are not considered by an
appropriate committee. Overview and Scrutiny Committee is the committee designated
with responsibility for receiving internal audit reports at Ryedale District Council.

5.0

POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

5.1

The work of internal audit is governed by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015
and relevant professional standards. These include the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards (PSIAS), CIPFA guidance on the application of those standards in Local
Government and the CIPFA Statement on the role of the Head of Internal Audit.

5.2

Fraud is a significant risk to the public sector. Annual losses are estimated to exceed
£40 billion in the United Kingdom. Councils are encouraged to prevent, detect and
deter fraud in order to safeguard public finances.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 7

21 OCTOBER 2021

5.3

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee approved the internal audit and counter fraud
work programmes for 2021/22 at its meeting held on 28th July 2021.

6.0

REPORT DETAILS

6.1

The internal audit progress report is contained in annex 1. It reports on progress
against the internal audit work programme. This includes a summary of current work
in progress, updated internal audit priorities for the year, completed work, and followup of previously agreed audit actions.

6.2

The counter fraud progress report is contained in annex 2. It reports on progress
against the counter fraud work programme. A range of work is detailed including
activity to promote awareness of fraud, work with external agencies, and information
on the level of fraud reported to date.

7.0

IMPLICATIONS

7.1

The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
None
b) Legal
None
c) Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental and Climate
Change, Crime & Disorder)
None

Anton Hodge
Chief Finance Officer (s151)

Author:
E-Mail Address:
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Connor Munro, Audit Manager
The Veritau Group
connor.munro@veritau.co.uk
Jonathan Dodsworth, Assistant Director – Corporate Fraud
The Veritau Group
01904 552947
jonathan.dodsworth@veritau.co.uk

Background Papers:
2021/22 Internal Audit and Counter Fraud Work Programmes

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Page 8

21 OCTOBER 2021

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2021/22
Date: 21 October 2021
Annex 1

Page 9

2

BACKGROUND
1

Internal audit provides independent and objective assurance and advice
about the Council’s operations. It helps the organisation to achieve its
overall objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to the
evaluation and improvement of the effectiveness of risk management,
control and governance processes.

2

The work of internal audit is governed by the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015 and relevant professional standards. These include the
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), CIPFA guidance on the
application of those standards in Local Government and the CIPFA
Statement on the role of the Head of Internal Audit.

3

In accordance with the PSIAS, the Head of Internal Audit is required to
report progress against the internal audit plan (the work programme)
agreed by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, and to identify any
emerging issues which need to be brought to the attention of the
committee.

4

The internal audit work programme was agreed by this committee in July
2021. The number of agreed days is 225 and the programme is flexible in
nature. Work is being kept under review to ensure that audit resources are
deployed to the areas of greatest risk and importance to the Council.

5

This is the first internal audit progress report to be received by the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee covering 2021/22 and summarises the
progress made to date in delivering the agreed programme of work.

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS
6

A summary of internal audit work currently underway is included in
appendix A. The current work programme, showing the priorities for
internal audit work during 2021/22, can be found at appendix B.

7

New audit work that has started includes records management, income
collection and debtor management, and Everyone Active (a review
focussing primarily on the processes for the monitoring of the financial
support package and for encouraging wider participation and engagement
with the Council’s leisure services).

8

Background planning has commenced for the CIPFA Financial Management
Code, environmental health and disaster recovery / backup management
audits ahead of making contact with the responsible officers or in
preparation for delivery later in the year. We have also started planning the
support we will provide to the Council in its next stage of development of
risk management arrangements – service risk management. Further
discussions will be held with the Governance team to programme this work.

9

Work so far in 2021/22 has also involved finalising outstanding 2020/21
audits. Appendix C summarises the key findings from work completed that
we have not previously reported to this committee.

Page 10

3
10

In addition to the audit shown in appendix C, there are another two
2020/21 audits that are still in progress (as shown in appendix A). An audit
of payroll is at draft report stage and an audit of the Waste & Street Scene
service is ongoing. We expect to be able to report the key findings and
agreed actions from both of these audits in time for the next meeting of
this committee.

FOLLOW-UP OF AGREED ACTIONS
11

All actions agreed with services as a result of internal audit work are
followed up to ensure that underlying control weaknesses are addressed. As
a result of this work we are generally satisfied that sufficient progress is
being made to address the control weaknesses identified in previous audits.
Where further assurances are required, follow-up of agreed actions will be
included as part of other audits in the work programme.

Page 11

4

APPENDIX A: INTERNAL AUDIT WORK IN PROGRESS AND
COMPLETED TO 21 OCTOBER 2021
Area

Status

Assurance
Level

Audit
Committee

Corporate & cross cutting
Service risk management

Planning

-

-

Records management

In progress

-

-

Income collection and
debtor management

In progress

-

-

CIPFA Financial
Management Code

Planning

-

-

Planning

-

-

Everyone Active

In progress

-

-

Disaster recovery /
backup management

Planning

-

-

Financial systems

Service areas
Environmental health
Technical / projects

2020/21 audits brought forward
Local Code of Corporate
Governance

Final

Reasonable

October 2021

Payroll

In draft

Limited

-

Waste & Street Scene

In progress

-

-

Page 12

5

APPENDIX B: INTERNAL AUDIT WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22: CURRENT PRIORITIES
Audit / Activity

Rationale

Corporate and cross cutting
Category 1 (do now)
Service risk management

Continuation of work from 2020/21. Key assurance area.

Records management

High risk area. Information governance is a key assurance area.

Category 2 (do next)
LGR readiness

Controls are changing and / or risks are increasing. Provides broader
assurance.

Page 13

Category 3 (do later)
Procurement
Freedom of Information
Transparency (follow-up)

Financial systems
Category 1 (do now)
Income collection and debtor management

Deferred from 2020/21. Controls are changing and / or risks are increasing.

CIPFA Financial Management Code

This work will build on that performed as part of the 2020/21 audit of the
Local Code of Corporate Governance.

Category 2 (do next)
Council tax and NNDR
Category 3 (do later)
Budget monitoring and management

Controls are changing and / or risks are increasing.

6

Service areas
Category 1 (do now)
Depot: stores and stock control; fleet
operation and workshop management

Continuation of work from 2020/21. To support ongoing and planned
reviews in these areas.

Category 2 (do next)
Environmental health

Deferred from 2020/21. Controls are changing and / or risks are increasing.

Category 3 (do later)
Post-Covid economic recovery
Home energy efficiency
Empty Homes Strategy

Page 14

Support services review (health check)

Technical / projects
Category 1 (do now)
Everyone Active (financial support package)

To provide support and advice in an area of higher risk with known issues.

Disaster recovery / backups management

Key assurance area and no recent audit assurance.

Category 2 (do next)
Cybersecurity
Category 3 (do later)

Key assurance area. Controls are changing and / or risks are increasing.

7

APPENDIX C: SUMMARY OF KEY FINDINGS FROM AUDITS FINALISED SINCE THE LAST REPORT TO
THE COMMITTEE
System/area
(month issued)

Area reviewed

Assurance Agreed Comments
rating
actions
1 2 3

Management
actions agreed

Local Code of
Corporate
Governance

This audit reviewed
the arrangements in
place to ensure that
the Council’s Code of
Governance is kept
under regular review
and that it complies
with the elements of
good governance
outlined in CIPFA’s
Good Governance
Framework. It also
assessed the
Council’s compliance
against the CIPFA
Financial
Management Code.

Reasonable
Assurance

The Council's Code of Governance complies well
with CIPFA’s Good Governance Framework and
evidences many areas of good practice. We
found that the Council complies with 79 of the
Framework’s 91 sub-principles at a level at
which we would assess provides substantial or
reasonable assurance that the requirements of
the sub-principles have been met. However, we
also categorised the Council’s governance
arrangements for of eight of the sub-principles
as providing limited assurance where the
Council could further evidence its compliance
with the Framework.

All sub-principles of
CIPFA’s Good
Governance
Framework assessed to
have been less well
demonstrated will be
reviewed. Any updates
will be included in the
Local Code review
report to be presented
to Overview & Scrutiny
Committee later in
2021.

The Annual Governance Statement (AGS) does
reflect that the Code of Governance underpins
the Statement but it is not clear from the
document how the four good governance
categories shown are linked to the Code’s
principles.

The structure of the
AGS will be revisited to
provide clearer links to
the Code of
Governance principles.

(August 2021)

0

1

1

Page 15

The Council is progressing its work in achieving
compliance with CIPFA's Financial Management
Code. It has completed and reported to
Overview & Scrutiny Committee a self-

8
System/area
(month issued)

Area reviewed

Assurance Agreed Comments
rating
actions
1 2 3
assessment and has an action plan in place to
achieve full compliance by 31 March 2022.

Management
actions agreed

Page 16

COUNTER FRAUD PROGRESS REPORT 2021/22
Date: 21 October 2021
Annex 2

Page 17

2

BACKGROUND
1

Fraud is a significant risk to local government. Losses to councils are
estimated to exceed £7.8 billion annually in the United Kingdom.1

2

Veritau delivers a corporate fraud service to the council which aims to
prevent, detect and deter fraud and related criminality. The counter fraud
team investigate allegations of fraud, plan and take part in counter fraud
campaigns (e.g. the National Fraud Initiative), undertake fraud awareness
activities with staff and the public, and maintain and update the council’s
counter fraud framework and associated policies.

3

This report updates the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on counter fraud
activity between 1 April 2021 and 31 August 2021.

FRAUD MANAGEMENT
4

Veritau undertakes a range of non-investigative activity to support the
development of counter fraud arrangements at the council. The council’s
counter fraud framework was updated in January 2021. This included a
revised strategy action plan, fraud risk assessment, and an updated
counter fraud and corruption policy.

5

A key objective for the counter fraud team is to raise awareness of fraud
amongst members of staff and the public. Fraud awareness training has
been delivered to members of staff working within the revenues and
benefits team this year. Awareness campaigns for all staff on cybercrime,
anti-bribery and money laundering are planned for later in the year.

6

Veritau continues to support the council with Covid-19 related payments.
The team works with officers to ensure that the council meets government
mandated verification, investigation and recovery requirements for Covid19 related grant payments.

7

In May the council’s counter fraud transparency data was updated to
include data on counter fraud work in 2020/21, meeting the council’s
obligation under the Local Government Transparency Code 2015.

8

Veritau attends the Yorkshire and Humber Fraud Investigation Group on
behalf of the council to share best practice and information on regional
fraud threats.

1

Annual Fraud Indicator 2017, Crowe Clark Whitehill

Page 18

3

MULTI-AGENCY WORK
9

Work on the 2020/21 National Fraud Initiative is ongoing. The counter
fraud team is reviewing over 500 matches flagged during the current
exercise, including matches relating to Covid-19 grant payments. Instances
of suspected fraud are considered for investigation.

10

The council are required to respond to requests for information from the
Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) who investigate Housing Benefit
fraud. In cases where council tax support is in payment, the counter fraud
team can jointly investigate with DWP counterparts. The team have
responded to 11 requests for information to date.

INVESTIGATIVE WORK
11

In 2021/22, the counter fraud team has received 21 referrals of suspected
fraud. These cover areas including council tax, council tax support, business
rates, and Covid-19 support payments.

12

During the pandemic, the counter fraud team has established practices to
conduct interviews under caution using video conferencing. This allows
interviews to be conducted remotely when it is in the best interest of the
council and the member of the public (for example where they are unable
to attend council offices).

13

Up to 31 August, the team helped the council to achieve £6k in savings.
There are currently 14 cases under investigation.

14

To date two fraudulent applications for Covid-19 grants have been blocked,
one person was issued a warning, and overpayments were identified in a
further three cases.

15

A detailed summary of investigative work can be found in appendix A,
below.

Page 19

4

APPENDIX A: SUMMARY OF INVESTIGATIVE WORK 2021/22
The table below shows the success rate of investigations and levels of savings achieved through counter fraud work in
2021/22.
2021/22
(As at 31/08/21)

2020/21
(Actual: Full Yr)

£5,848

£34,549

Amount of savings identified relating to Covid-19 business
grant related fraud

£20,000

£30,000

% of investigations completed which result in a successful
outcome (for example payments stopped or amended,
sanctions, prosecutions)

75%

64%

Amount of actual savings (quantifiable savings - e.g.
repayment of loss) identified through fraud investigation

Page 20

Caseload figures for the period are:
2021/22
(As at 31/08/21)
21

2020/21
(Full Year)
57

Number of cases under investigation

10

132

Number of investigations completed

8

11

14

n/a

Referrals received

Number of verification cases completed3

2
3

As at 31/03/21
Verification cases relate to reviews of applications for Covid-19 grants.

5
Activity

Work completed or in progress

Fraud detection
and
investigation

The service promotes the use of criminal investigation techniques and standards to respond to any fraud
perpetrated against the council. Activity to date includes the following:

Page 21



Covid-19 related fraud – The counter fraud team continue to support the council to prevent and
detect fraud associated with Covid-19 related payments. Two investigations into fraudulent
applications for Covid-19 grants to businesses have been completed. Payments were not made in
either case. One of the cases was identified as a being part of a national scam that affected multiple
local authorities in the UK. Details of the scam were passed to the National Anti-Fraud Network
(NAFN) and circulated to councils across the country. In addition, fourteen applications have been
verified as part of government mandated post assurance work – all were found to have been applied
for and granted correctly. One investigation and four verifications are ongoing.



Council Tax fraud - Six referrals for possible council tax fraud have been received to date. Two
investigations have been completed in this area and one is ongoing. One person has been issued
with a formal warning relating to a false or incorrectly claimed single person discount.



Business Rates fraud – One investigation has been completed in this area which resulted in an
overpayment of £6k of incorrectly claimed small business rate relief being identified. The debt has
been fully repaid to the council.



Council Tax Support fraud – The team has received thirteen referrals for potential fraud relating to
council tax support and there are currently eight investigations ongoing.



Internal fraud – No internal fraud cases have been reported in 2021/22 to date.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

REPORT TO:

AUDIT, OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE:

21 OCTOBER 2021

REPORT OF THE:

CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER (s151)
ANTON HODGE

TITLE OF REPORT:

TREASURY MANAGEMENT MID-YEAR REVIEW

WARDS AFFECTED:

ALL

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

To report on the treasury management activities to date for the financial year 2021/22
in accordance with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s
(CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management (the Code).

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

It is recommended that:
(i)
Members receive this report; and
(ii)
The mid-year performance of the in-house managed funds to date is noted.

3.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1

The Council has adopted the Code. A provision of the Code is that a mid-year review
report must be made to the Full Council relating to the treasury activities of the current
year.

4.0

SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1

There are significant risks when investing public funds especially with unknown
institutions. However, by the adoption of the CIPFA Code and a prudent investment
strategy these are minimised. The employment of Treasury Advisors also helps reduce
the risk.

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

Page 23
OFFICIAL

21 OCTOBER 2021

REPORT
5.0

BACKGROUND AND INTRODUCTION

5.1

Treasury Management in Local Government is governed by the CIPFA Code of
Practice on Treasury Management in the Public Services and in this context is the
management of the Authority’s cash flows, its banking and capital market transactions,
the effective control of the risks associated with those activities and the pursuit of
optimum performance consistent with those risks. The Authority has adopted the Code
and complies with its requirements

5.2

The Council operates a balanced budget, which broadly means cash raised during the
year will meet its cash expenditure. Part of the treasury management operations
ensures this cash flow is adequately planned, with surplus monies being invested in
low risk counterparties, providing adequate liquidity initially before considering
maximising investment return.

5.3

The second major function of the treasury management service is the funding of the
Council’s capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide towards whether the
Council has a borrowing need, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure
the Council can meet its capital spending operations. This management of longer-term
cash may involve arranging long or short term loans or using longer term cash flow
surpluses.

5.4

This mid-year report has been prepared in compliance with CIPFA’s Code of Practice
and covers the following:
 An economic update for the first six months of 2021/22;
 A review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment
Strategy;
 A review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2021/22;
 A review of compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits for 2021/22.

6.0

POLICY CONTEXT

6.1

The Council has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management in
Local Authorities and this report complies with the requirements under this Code.

7.0

CONSULTATION

7.1

The Council uses the services of Link Asset Services (Link) to provide treasury
management information and advice.

8.0

REPORT DETAILS

8.1

The Council’s treasury advisors Link Asset Services – Treasury Solutions summarised
the key points associated with economic activity in Q2 2021/22 up to 30 September
2021:



The development of Coronavirus vaccines has boosted economic confidence and
unleashed pent-up demand during the summer;
Bank Rate remained unchanged at 0.1%, although financial markets are pricing
in a possible first increase in the bank rate to 0.25% in February;

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

Page 24
OFFICIAL

21 OCTOBER 2021





Quantitative easing programme is unchanged and is due to finish by the end of
the year at a total of £895bn;
There has been a marked increase in concern that recent increases in prices,
particularly gas and electricity, will lead to faster and higher inflation expectations
and underlying wage growth;
Some concern that underlying price pressures in the economy may become
embedded next year, elevating future inflation to stay significantly above the 2%
target.

A more detailed economic commentary on developments during Q2 2021/22 is included
in Appendix C.
8.2

The Council’s treasury advisor, Link Asset Services, has provided the following
forecast:

Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy
Update.
8.3

The Treasury Management Strategy (TMSS) for 2021/22 was approved by this Council
on 18 February 2021. There are no policy changes to the TMSS, the details in this
report update the position in the light of the updated economic position and budgetary
changes already approved. Council’s Annual Investment Strategy, which is
incorporated in the TMSS, outlines the Council’s investment priorities as follows:




Security of capital
Liquidity
Yield

8.4

The Council will also aim to achieve the optimum return on investments commensurate
with the proper levels of security and liquidity. In the current economic climate it is
considered appropriate to keep investments short term (maximum loan period of 12
months) and only invest with highly credit rated financial institutions, using Link’s
suggested creditworthiness approach, including sovereign rating and credit default
swap (CDS) overlay information provided by Link.

8.5

Investments during the first six months of the year have been in line with the strategy
and there have been no deviations from the strategy.

8.6

As outlined above, there is still some uncertainty and volatility in the financial and
banking market, both globally and in the UK. In this context, it is considered that the
strategy approved on 18 February 2021 is still fit for purpose in the current economic

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

Page 25
OFFICIAL

21 OCTOBER 2021

climate.

8.7

Investment Portfolio 2021/22
In accordance with the Code, it is the Council’s priority to ensure security of capital and
liquidity and to obtain an appropriate level of return consistent with the Council’s risk
appetite.

8.8

As highlighted in the economic commentary, the continuing effect of Covid-19 on the
economy is apparent in the financial markets, with the bank base rate remaining at
0.1%. Investment returns have therefore been low during Q2, although there is the
possibility of rates beginning to rise as the year continues.

8.9

The Council’s investment position at the beginning of the financial year was as follows:
Investments
(£)
8,901,486
20.000.000
28,901,486

Type of Institution
UK Clearing Banks
Foreign Banks
Building Societies
Local Authorities
Total

8.10

A full list of investments held as at 30 September 2021, compared to Sectors
counterparty list and changes to Fitch, Moodys and S&P’s credit ratings during the first
six months of 2021/22 is shown in annex B and summarised below:

Investments
(£)
27,266,040
28,000,000
55,266,040

Type of Institution
UK Clearing Banks
Foreign Banks
Building Societies
Local Authorities
Total

8.11

The average level of funds available for investment purposes in the first six months of
2021/22 was £36.08m. These funds were available on a temporary basis and the level
of funds available was mainly dependent on the timing of precept payments, receipt of
grants, along with progress of the capital programme.

8.12

The table below compares the investment portfolio yield for the first six months of the
year against a benchmark of the average 7 day LIBID rate of -0.08%.
Average
Investment

Cash Equivalents
Fixed Term Deposits

8.13

(£)
12,622,572
23,456,284

Average
Gross
Rate of
Return
0%
0.23%

Net
Rate of
Return

Benchmark
Return

Interest
Earned
(£)

n/a
n/a

n/a
-0.08%

26,768

The Council’s budgeted investment return for 2021/22 is £55k and performance during
the financial year to 30 September 2021 is £26.8k, slightly below the YTD target of
£27.5k.

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

Page 26
OFFICIAL

21 OCTOBER 2021

8.14

8.15

During 20/21, we experienced difficulties placing deposits with many Local Authorities
at the then maximum level of £1m, and consequently were carrying a large balance in
our call account, attracting 0% return. Local Authorities are considered as high security
deposits as they are backed by the UK Government and in line with other secure
counterparties, which currently ranges up to £4m with the highest rated UK banks. The
limit for local authority deposits was therefore increased to £2m. In Q2 of 21/22, there
have been continued difficulties in placing funds, due to few other local authorities
requiring cash, so the average balance in the call account has increased. Cash
balances have also been higher than usual, due to the regular receipt and
disbursement of Covid-19 business grants.
Compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits
It is a statutory duty for the Council to determine and keep under review the “Affordable
Borrowing Limits”. The Council’s approved Treasury and Prudential Indicators
(affordability limits) are outlined in the approved Treasury Management Strategy
Statement (TMSS).

8.16

During the financial year to date the Council has operated within the treasury limits and
Prudential Indicators set out in the Council’s TMSS and in compliance with the
Council’s Treasury Management Practices. The Prudential and Treasury Indicators are
shown in annex A.

8.17

The level of borrowing is £1.5m, full details can be found at annex B. Repayments
have been made in line with the loan repayment schedule. In order to fulfil the funding
requirements of the current Capital Programme it is unlikely any additional borrowing
will be undertaken, with any anticipated capital expenditure funded from reserves.

9.0

TREASURY MANAGEMENT FUNCTION & SWEEPING ARRANGEMENTS

9.1

Included within the service level agreement currently being finalised with North
Yorkshire County Council (NYCC) for the provision of s151 Officer and Finance
services, there is provision for treasury management support.

9.2

Reporting and monitoring processes are currently in place. Although options were
explored to incorporate Ryedale into the pooled investment fund operated by NYCC,
this was not possible to implement under the terms of our agreement with Lloyds Bank.

10.0

IMPLICATIONS

10.1

The following implications have been identified:
a)

Financial
The results of the investment strategy affect the revenue budget. The investment
income return to 30 September 2021 was £26.8k, which is £0.7k below the profiled
budget. The cost of borrowing affects the revenue account, and forecast interest
costs for the year are £51.5k, which is £6.5k below budget.

b)

Legal
There are no additional legal implications within this report.

c)

Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental, Crime &
Disorder)
There are no additional implications within this report.

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

Page 27
OFFICIAL

21 OCTOBER 2021

Anton Hodge
Chief Finance Officer (s151)
Author:
Telephone No:
E-Mail Address:

Thomas Watson, Trainee Accountant, NYCC
01609 535769
thomas.watson@northyorks.gov.uk

Background Papers:
None
Background Papers are available for inspection at:
N/a

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

Page 28
OFFICIAL

21 OCTOBER 2021

ANNEX A
PRUDENTIAL AND TREASURY INDICATORS
Prudential Indicators
2020/21
Actual

2021/22
Estimate

2021/22
YTD

£1.015m

£6.903m

£1.297m

£0m

£0m

£0m

Capital Financing Requirement as at 30 Sept (incl.
leases)

£2.069m

£3.494m

£1.901m

Annual change in Capital Financing Requirement

£0.367m

£1.424m

(£0.168m)

Capital Expenditure
Net borrowing requirement

Treasury Management Indicators
2020/21
Actual

2021/22
Original

2021/22
Actual

Authorised Limit for external debt borrowing
other long term liabilities
Total

N/a
N/a
N/a

£10.0m
£ 1.5m
£11.5m

N/a
N/a
N/a

Operational Boundary for external debt borrowing
other long term liabilities
Total

N/a
N/a
N/a

£5.0m
£1.0m
£6.0m

N/a
N/a
N/a

£1.51m

£1.49m

£1.49m

N/a

100%

N/a

N/a

50%

N/a

N/a

£1.0m

N/a

External debt

Upper limit for fixed interest rate exposure
Net principal re fixed rate investments
Upper limit for variable rate exposure
Net principal re variable rate investments
Upper limit for total principal sums invested for over
364 days
(per maturity date)

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

Page 29
OFFICIAL

21 OCTOBER 2021

This page is intentionally left blank

ANNEX B
Investment Portfolio at 30 September 2021
Counterparty

Amount £
7,766,040

Investment
Duration
On call

Sovereign
Rating
AA

Lloyds Bank
South Somerset District Council

1,000,000

12 Months

AAA

Goldman Sachs International Bank

2,000,000

6 Months

AA

Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council

1,000,000

12 Months

AAA

Blaenau Gwent Borough Council

1,000,000

12 Months

AAA

Santander

500,000

6 Months

AAA

Santander

1,000,000

6 Months

AAA

North Lanarkshire Council

2,000,000

6 Months

AAA

Gloucester City Council

1,000,000

12 Months

AAA

Goldman Sachs International Bank

1,000,000

6 Months

AA

Lancashire County Council

1,000,000

12 Months

AAA

Cheltenham Borough Council

1,000,000

12 Months

AAA

Broxbourne

1,000,000

12 Months

AAA

Lloyds Bank PLC

2,000,000

12 Months

AA

Moray Council

2,000,000

9 Months

AAA

Lloyds Bank PLC

1,000,000

12 Months

AA

Gosport Council

1,000,000

12 Months

AAA

Staffordshire Moorlands DC

1,000,000

12 Months

AAA

Barbergh District Council

2,000,000

12 Months

AAA

Slough Borough Council

2,000,000

12 Months

AAA

Goldman Sachs International Bank

2,000,000

6 Months

AA

Santander

1,500,000

6 Months

AA

Santander

500,000

6 Months

AA

Santander

1,000,000

6 Months

AA

Gloucester City Council

2,000,000

12 Months

AAA

Standard Chartered

3,000,000

6 Months

AA

Lancashire County Council

1,000,000

12 Months

AAA

Lloyds Bank PLC

2,000,000

12 Months

AAA

Moray Council

2,000,000

12 Months

AAA

Somerset & West Taunton Council

2,000,000

12 Months

AAA

Dudley MBC

2,000,000

12 Months

AAA

Blackpool BC

2,000,000

12 Months

AAA

Lloyds Bank PLC

2,000,000

12 Months

AA

Fitch, Moody's and S & P's Sovereignty Rating for the UK is AA.
All the above borrowers met the required credit rating at the time of investment.
Borrowing Schedule as at 30 September 2021
Lender
PWLB
PWLB

Principal Outstanding
£1.00m
£0.51m

Type
Maturity
EIP

Page 31
OFFICIAL

Interest Rate
3.69%
2.99%

Maturity
50 years
19 years

This page is intentionally left blank

ANNEX C

Detailed Economic Commentary on Developments during Q2 2021/22
MPC meeting 24.9.21


The Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) voted unanimously to leave Bank Rate unchanged at 0.10%
and made no changes to its programme of quantitative easing purchases due to finish by the end of
this year at a total of £895bn; two MPC members voted to stop the last £35bn of purchases as they
were concerned that this would add to inflationary pressures.



There was a major shift in the tone of the MPC’s minutes at this meeting from the previous meeting
in August which had majored on indicating that some tightening in monetary policy was now on the
horizon, but also not wanting to stifle economic recovery by too early an increase in Bank Rate. In his
press conference after the August MPC meeting, Governor Andrew Bailey said, “the challenge of
avoiding a steep rise in unemployment has been replaced by that of ensuring a flow of labour into
jobs” and that “the Committee will be monitoring closely the incoming evidence regarding
developments in the labour market, and particularly unemployment, wider measures of slack, and
underlying wage pressures.” In other words, it was flagging up a potential danger that labour
shortages could push up wage growth by more than it expects and that, as a result, CPI inflation
would stay above the 2% target for longer. It also discounted sharp increases in monthly inflation
figures in the pipeline in late 2021 which were largely propelled by events a year ago e.g., the cut in
VAT in August 2020 for the hospitality industry, and by temporary shortages which would eventually
work their way out of the system: in other words, the MPC had been prepared to look through a
temporary spike in inflation.



So, in August the country was just put on alert. However, this time the MPC’s words indicated there
had been a marked increase in concern that more recent increases in prices, particularly the
increases in gas and electricity prices in October and due again next April, are, indeed, likely to lead
to faster and higher inflation expectations and underlying wage growth, which would in turn
increase the risk that price pressures would prove more persistent next year than previously
expected. Indeed, to emphasise its concern about inflationary pressures, the MPC pointedly
chose to reaffirm its commitment to the 2% inflation target in its statement; this suggested that
it was now willing to look through the flagging economic recovery during the summer to prioritise
bringing inflation down next year. This is a reversal of its priorities in August and a long way from
words at earlier MPC meetings which indicated a willingness to look through inflation overshooting
the target for limited periods to ensure that inflation was ‘sustainably over 2%’. Indeed, whereas in
August the MPC’s focus was on getting through a winter of temporarily high energy prices and supply
shortages, believing that inflation would return to just under the 2% target after reaching a high around
4% in late 2021, now its primary concern is that underlying price pressures in the economy are likely
to get embedded over the next year and elevate future inflation to stay significantly above its 2%
target and for longer.



Financial markets are now pricing in a first increase in Bank Rate from 0.10% to 0.25% in February
2022, but this looks ambitious as the MPC has stated that it wants to see what happens to the
economy, and particularly to employment once furlough ends at the end of September. At the MPC’s
meeting in February it will only have available the employment figures for November: to get a clearer
picture of employment trends, it would need to wait until the May meeting when it would have data
up until February. At its May meeting, it will also have a clearer understanding of the likely peak of
inflation.



The MPC’s forward guidance on its intended monetary policy on raising Bank Rate versus selling
(quantitative easing) holdings of bonds is as follows: 1. Placing the focus on raising Bank Rate as “the active instrument in most circumstances”.
2. Raising Bank Rate to 0.50% before starting on reducing its holdings.
3. Once Bank Rate is at 0.50% it would stop reinvesting maturing gilts.
4. Once Bank Rate had risen to at least 1%, it would start selling its holdings.



COVID-19 vaccines. These have been the game changer which have enormously boosted
confidence that life in the UK could largely return to normal during the summer after a third wave
of the virus threatened to overwhelm hospitals in the spring. With the household saving rate having

Page 33
OFFICIAL

ANNEX C
been exceptionally high since the first lockdown in March 2020, there is plenty of pent-up demand
and purchasing power stored up for services in hard hit sectors like restaurants, travel and hotels.
The big question is whether mutations of the virus could develop which render current vaccines
ineffective, as opposed to how quickly vaccines can be modified to deal with them and enhanced
testing programmes be implemented to contain their spread.
US. See comments below on US treasury yields.
EU. The slow role out of vaccines initially delayed economic recovery in early 2021 but the vaccination
rate has picked up sharply since then. After a contraction in GDP of -0.3% in Q1, Q2 came in with strong
growth of 2%, which is likely to continue into Q3, though some countries more dependent on tourism may
struggle. Recent sharp increases in gas and electricity prices have increased overall inflationary
pressures but the ECB is likely to see these as being only transitory after an initial burst through to around
4%, so is unlikely to be raising rates for a considerable time.
German general election. With the CDU/CSU and SDP both having won around 24-26% of the vote in
the September general election, the composition of Germany’s next coalition government may not be
agreed by the end of 2021. An SDP-led coalition would probably pursue a slightly less restrictive fiscal
policy, but any change of direction from a CDU/CSU led coalition government is likely to be small.
However, with Angela Merkel standing down as Chancellor as soon as a coalition is formed, there will be
a hole in overall EU leadership which will be difficult to fill.
China. After a concerted effort to get on top of the virus outbreak in Q1 2020, economic recovery was
strong in the rest of the year; this enabled China to recover all the initial contraction. During 2020, policy
makers both quashed the virus and implemented a programme of monetary and fiscal support that was
particularly effective at stimulating short-term growth. At the same time, China’s economy benefited from
the shift towards online spending by consumers in developed markets. These factors helped to explain
its comparative outperformance compared to western economies during 2020 and earlier in 2021.
However, the pace of economic growth has now fallen back after this initial surge of recovery from the
pandemic and China is now struggling to contain the spread of the Delta variant through sharp local
lockdowns - which will also depress economic growth. There are also questions as to how effective
Chinese vaccines are proving. In addition, recent regulatory actions motivated by a political agenda to
channel activities into officially approved directions, are also likely to reduce the dynamism and long-term
growth of the Chinese economy.
Japan. 2021 has been a patchy year in combating Covid. However, after a slow start, nearly 50% of the
population are now vaccinated and Covid case numbers are falling. After a weak Q3 there is likely to be
a strong recovery in Q4. The Bank of Japan is continuing its very loose monetary policy but with little
prospect of getting inflation back above 1% towards its target of 2%, any time soon: indeed, inflation was
negative in July. New Prime Minister Kishida has promised a large fiscal stimulus package after the
November general election – which his party is likely to win.
World growth. World growth was in recession in 2020 but recovered during 2021 until starting to lose
momentum more recently. Inflation has been rising due to increases in gas and electricity prices, shipping
costs and supply shortages, although these should subside during 2022. It is likely that we are heading
into a period where there will be a reversal of world globalisation and a decoupling of western countries
from dependence on China to supply products, and vice versa. This is likely to reduce world growth rates
from those in prior decades.
Supply shortages. The pandemic and extreme weather events have been highly disruptive of extended
worldwide supply chains. At the current time there are major queues of ships unable to unload their
goods at ports in New York, California and China. Such issues have led to mis-distribution of shipping
containers around the world and have contributed to a huge increase in the cost of shipping. Combined
with a shortage of semi-conductors, these issues have had a disruptive impact on production in many
countries. Many western countries are also hitting up against a difficulty in filling job vacancies. It is
expected that these issues will be gradually sorted out, but they are currently contributing to a spike
upwards in inflation and shortages of materials and goods on shelves.

Page 34
OFFICIAL

RDC Forward Plan (Overview and Scrutiny).

Committee

A/B

Service Area

Au

Financial Services

Au

Financial Services

Au

Financial Services

Report Title

Date of Meeting

18-Nov-21
18-Nov-21

18-Nov-21

18-Nov-21

Page 35

18-Nov-21

18-Nov-21

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee
Overview and
Scrutiny Committee
Overview and
Scrutiny Committee
Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee
Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

OS

OS

Human Resources
and Organisational
Development
Customer Services

Corporate
Governance

Annual Governance Statement

Draft
Deadline

Final
Deadline

Draft
Press
Release

Implement
Date

Full
Council

Reporting
Officer

Annual
Y/N

27-Oct-21

09-Nov-21

AH

Y

External Audit Annual Fee
Letter 2021/22

27-Oct-21

09-Nov-21

AH

Y

External Audit Annual Audit
Letter 2020/21

27-Oct-21

09-Nov-21

AH

Y

Delivering the Council Plan Key Performance Indicators for
O&S Review (if required)

27-Oct-21

09-Nov-21

LB

Y

Customer Complaints and
Compliments Q2 2021/22

27-Oct-21

09-Nov-21

JK

Y

Scrutiny Review Progress
Report

27-Oct-21

09-Nov-21

SC

Y

Timetable of Meetings
20222023

29-Dec-21

11-Jan-22

SC

Y

January
20-Jan-22

20-Jan-22

20-Jan-22

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee
Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

Corporate
Governance

Au

Financial Services

Second Internal Audit and
Counter Fraud Progress
Reports 2021/22

29-Dec-21

11-Jan-22

AH

Y

Au

Financial Services

Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 Consultation

29-Dec-21

11-Jan-22

AH

Y

Au

Financial Services

29-Dec-21

11-Jan-22

AH

Y

External Audit Plan

Agenda Item 9

20-Jan-22

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Committee

A/B

Service Area

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee
Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au
B

Corporate
Governance
Financial Services

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee
Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Financial Services

Report Title

Draft
Deadline

Final
Deadline

29-Dec-21

11-Jan-22

29-Dec-21

11-Jan-22

19-Jan-22

Delivering the Council Plan Key Performance Indicators for
O&S Review (if required)

Date of Meeting

20-Jan-22

20-Jan-22

Update on the use of RIPA

Treasury Management Strategy
Statement and Investment
Strategy 2022-23

Draft
Press
Release

Reporting
Officer

Annual
Y/N

SC

Y

AH

Y

01-Feb-22

AH

Y

19-Jan-22

01-Feb-22

LB

Y

11-Jan-22

Implement
Date

Full
Council

17-Feb-22

February

10-Feb-22
10-Feb-22

Page 36

10-Feb-22

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

Human Resources
and Organisational
Development

Statement of Accounts 2020/21

OS

Customer Services

Customer Complaints and
Compliments Q3 2021/22

19-Jan-22

01-Feb-22

JK

Y

OS

Customer Services

Safer Ryedale and Community
Safety Plan

02-Mar-22

15-Mar-22

BS

Y

OS

Financial Services

CIPFA Financial Management
Code

02-Mar-22

15-Mar-22

AH

Y

Progress Report on the
Implementation of the Climate
Change Action Plan and
Associated Projects

02-Mar-22

15-Mar-22

AT

Y

02-Mar-22

15-Mar-22

SC

Y

March
24-Mar-22

24-Mar-22

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

24-Mar-22

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

24-Mar-22

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Au

Economic
Development,
Business and
Partnerships
Corporate
Governance

Risk Management Update

April
2 of 3

21-Apr-22

21-Apr-22
21-Apr-22

21-Apr-22

Overview and
Scrutiny Committee
Overview and
Scrutiny Committee
Overview and
Scrutiny Committee
Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

OS

Corporate
Governance

Standards Complaints Overview
and Annual Report
External Audit Progress Report

30-Mar-22

12-Apr-22

SC

Y

30-Mar-22

12-Apr-22

AH

Y

Au

Financial Services

Au

Financial Services

Third Internal Audit and Counter
Fraud Progress report

30-Mar-22

12-Apr-22

AH

Y

Au

Financial Services

Internal Audit and Counter
Fraud Governance Plans
2022/23

30-Mar-22

12-Apr-22

AH

Y

Page 37
3 of 3

This page is intentionally left blank

